
 
 

 
eastsussex.gov.uk 

LEAD MEMBER FOR ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH 
 
DECISIONS to be made by the Lead Member for Adult Social Care and Health,  
Councillor Carl Maynard 
 
MONDAY, 31 OCTOBER 2022 AT 2.00 PM  
 
REMOTE MEETING VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS  
 
 
AGENDA 
 
1.   Decisions made by the Lead Member on 28 September 2022  (Pages 3 - 4) 

 
2.   Disclosure of interests   

Disclosure by all Members present of personal interests in matters on the agenda, the 
nature of any interest and whether the Members regard the interest as prejudicial under 
the terms of the Code of Conduct. 

 
3.   Urgent items   

Notification of any items which the Lead Member considers urgent and proposes to take 
at the appropriate part of the agenda. 

 
4.   Future Technology Enabled Care Service Provision  (Pages 5 - 6) 

Report by Director of Adult Social Care and Health 
 

5.   Homes for Ukraine host winter top-up payments  (Pages 7 - 14) 
Report by the Director of Adult Social Care and Health 
 

6.   Any urgent items previously notified under agenda item 3   
 

 
 
 
PHILIP BAKER 
Assistant Chief Executive   
County Hall, St Anne’s Crescent 
LEWES BN7 1UE 21 October 2022 
 
Contact Belinda Trunfull, 01273 335230,  
 
Email: Belinda.Trunfull@eastsussex.gov.uk  
 
NOTE: As part of the County Council’s drive to increase accessibility to its public meetings, this 
meeting will be broadcast live on its website. The live broadcast is accessible at: 
www.eastsussex.gov.uk/yourcouncil/webcasts/default.htm 
 
 

http://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/yourcouncil/webcasts/default.htm


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

LEAD MEMBER FOR ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH 

 

DECISIONS made by the Lead Member for Adult Social Care and Health, Councillor Carl 
Maynard, on 28 September 2022 at a Remote Meeting via Microsoft Teams  

 

 

Councillor John Ungar spoke on item 4 (see minute 21) 

18. DECISIONS MADE BY THE LEAD MEMBER ON 6 SEPTEMBER 2022  

18.1   The Lead Member approved as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 6 
September 2022. 

19. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS  

19.1   Councillor John Unger declared a personal non prejudicial interest for item 4 stating that a 
relative administers the fund on behalf of a Local Authority. 

20. REPORTS  

20.1   Copies of the reports referred to below are included in the minute book. 

21. HOUSEHOLD SUPPORT FUND  

21.1   The Lead Member considered a report by the Director of Adult Social Care and Health 
regarding the Household Support Fund (Three) 
 
DECISIONS 
 
21.2  The Lead Member RESOLVED to: 
 
1. approve the proposed use of £2,216,783 of the Household Support Fund, to provide support 
to households with pensioners, households with a disabled person and other vulnerable 
households as set out in paragraph 2 of the report; and 
2. delegate authority to the Director of Adult Social Care and Health to take all action necessary 
to implement the scheme. 
 
Reasons 
 
21.3   Household Support Fund 3 provides a further opportunity to extend the support to 
households with children, households with pensioners, households with a disabled person and 
other vulnerable households within East Sussex who are experiencing financial challenges. 
 

22. DIRECT PAYMENTS SUPPORT SERVICE PROVISION  

 
22.1   The Lead Member considered a report by the Director of Adult Social Care and Health 
regarding Direct Payments Support Service (DPSS) Provision. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



 

 

 

 

 
DECISIONS 
 
22.2  The Lead Member RESOLVED to: 
 
1. approve a commissioning exercise for DPSS which will ensure the new service is in place by 
1 April 2024; and 
2. delegate authority to the Director of Adult Social Care and Health to take all necessary 
actions to give effect to the implementation of the above recommendation. 
 
Reasons 
 
22.3   DPSS offer vital provision to support eligible individuals with their management of their 
Direct Payments and in turn to meet their care and support needs. As such, it is important that 
future DPSS promote personalised care and self-directed support and the commission will 
enable the development of the future model. 

23. PROCUREMENT OF ONLINE SEXUAL HEALTH SERVICES  

 
23.1   The Lead Member considered a report by the Director of Adult Social Care and Health 
regarding the procurement of the online Sexual Health service. 
 
DECISIONS 
 
23.2  The Lead Member RESOLVED to: 
 
1 agree to proceed to procurement with a contract for online sexual health services which 
covers all divisions in East Sussex; and 
2 agree to delegate authority to the Director of Public Health to take all necessary actions to 
give effect to the implementation of the procurement of the online sexual health service and to 
finalise the service specification. 
 
Reasons 
 
23.3   The proposed contract covers all divisions in East Sussex and it was agreed to proceed 
to procurement with a contract for online sexual health services. 
 

24. EXTENSION OF CURRENT INTEGRATED LIFESTYLE SERVICE CONTRACT  

 
24.1   The Lead Member considered a report by the Director of Adult Social Care and Health 
regarding an extension of the current Integrated Lifestyle Service (ILS) contract. 
 
DECISIONS 
 
24.2  The Lead Member RESOLVED to approve the Modification Request Form to extend the 
current ILS contract for a further eight months with the existing provider, at a value of 
£1,377,009. 
 
Reasons 
 
24.3   The rationale for extending the current ILS contract, and the reasons for extending it with 
the existing provider are clear and represent best value for East Sussex County Council. 

Page 4



 

Report to: Lead Member for Adult Social Care and Health 
 

Date of meeting: 
 

31 October 2022 

By: Director of Adult Social Care and Health 
 

Title: Future Technology Enabled Care (TEC) service provision 
 

Purpose: To seek approval from the Lead Member for Adult Social Care and 
Health to undertake a competitive tender and procurement process 
for the TEC contract in East Sussex. 

 

 

The Lead Member is recommended to: 
 

1. approve the recommissioning of the telecare contract to be awarded in April 2023 with 
a start date of 1 September 2023; and 

2. delegate authority to the Director of Adult Social Care and Health to take all necessary 
actions, including contract award, to give effect to the implementation of the above 
recommendation. 
 

 

1 Background 

1.1 Technology Enabled Care (TEC), also known as telecare, refers to a range of services that 
use alarms and sensors that are monitored 24/7 by a dedicated alarm receiving centre. The 
service enables users to access support when they need it and provides reassurance not 
just to clients but also to their carers, family and friends. The types of equipment available 
to clients include portable alarms, falls detectors, movement sensors, environmental 
sensors and pill dispensers. 

1.2 The current telecare contract which is provided by Careium UK was awarded in September 
2016 and, following an agreed contract extension, is due to end on 31 August 2023. The 
contract covers the sourcing, installation, maintenance, repair and collection of equipment 
as well as the alert monitoring service. 

1.3 The existing contract provides monitored services to over 8,300 clients as well as a 
telecheck service which provides scheduled phone calls to clients for a range of reasons 
such as wellbeing checks and medication reminders. 

1.4 Nationally there is an increased emphasis on the utilisation of digital technology, including 
Technology Enabled Care services to support and improve existing service provision. The 
Adult Social Care Reform White Paper, People at the Heart of Care1 makes multiple 
references to the use of technology and using its full potential to support people’s lives and 
aspirations. 

2. Proposed future TEC service model 

 

2.1 The intention is to tender a contract for five years with an option to extend by up to 60 

months, providing potential bidders with long enough terms to make investment worthwhile 

whilst providing the local authority the option to review the terms and respond to an ever 

evolving technology enabled care environment. 

2.2 Establishing a strategic partnership with the successful bidder to encourage the provider to 

work proactively and in partnership with Adult Social Care and Health to take forward 

service developments. 

                                            
1 People at the Heart of Care: adult social care reform - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk) 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/people-at-the-heart-of-care-adult-social-care-reform-white-paper/people-at-the-heart-of-care-adult-social-care-reform


2.3 Introducing an urgent, short-term provision that is not constrained by the current Care Act 

eligibility criteria to support admission avoidance and hospital discharge. This would initially 

only be available to adult social care clients upon discharge but with the potential to extend 

the offer should funding be identified from Health services. 

2.4 Moving away from current investment in a single brand of equipment and moving to a 

supplier agnostic model, utilising alternative equipment provision that best supports the 

client and ensures best value for the Council. 

2.5 Areas of the existing model will be strengthened including joint assessments and training 

provision, accessibility of the prescriber portal, proactive feedback to operational staff and 

using feedback to identify changing levels of client needs. 

2.6 Future proofing the contract to enable the adoption of services such as a responder service 

whereby community responders would be on-hand to support clients in non-emergency 

situations, joint services with Health and options resulting from a range of forthcoming TEC 

pilots. 

 
3. Financial implications 

 

3.1 The contract is funded from provision within the Adult Social Care and Health core budget 
and through client contributions. 

3.2 As with the current service, subject to a financial assessment, clients will be required to 

contribute towards the cost of their service provision. The current maximum client 

contribution is £2.85 per week. 
  

4. Governance 

 

4.1 A project board has been established to review the existing service provision and consider 

the requirements for the future service. The project board will escalate risks and issues to 

the project sponsor, the Assistant Director for Strategy, Commissioning and Supply 

Management, as required. 
4.2 Engagement has taken place with a range of stakeholders to ensure that the future service 

is built around the experiences and requirements of service users, carers and adult social 

care staff. 
4.3 An Equalities Impact Assessment has been completed and the outcomes used to shape 

the proposed service model outlined in this paper. 

5. Conclusion and reason for recommendation 
 

5.1 TEC services offer reassurance and peace of mind to a significant number of clients and at 
little cost, offering both value for money and a means or enable adults to maintain 
independent lifestyles for longer than would otherwise be possible. It is therefore important 
that this vital service is retained to benefit both existing and future clients. 

 

5.2       The Lead Member for Adult Social Care and Health is therefore recommended to approve 
the retender of the TEC contract and delegate authority to the Director of Adult Social Care 
and Health to take the necessary actions to implement this recommendation including the 
contract award. 

  

MARK STAINTON 
Director of Adult Social Care and Health 

 

Contact Officer: Thomas Skilton, Project Manager (Housing & Support Solutions)  
thomas.skilton@eastsussex.gov.uk  

Page 6

mailto:thomas.skilton@eastsussex.gov.uk


1 

 

 
Report to: Lead Member 

Date of meeting: 31 October 2022 

By: Direct of Adult Social Care & Health   

Title: 
Homes for Ukraine host Winter top-up payments  

Purpose: To seek approval to allocate up to £495,000 of the Homes for 
Ukraine grant towards additional winter top up payments for hosts 
to enhance the sustainability of host arrangements 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

The Lead Member is recommended to: 

 

1) note that sustaining host/guest arrangements is a key part of managing the risk of 
homelessness to Ukrainians on the Homes for Ukraine scheme in the short to medium term; 
 
2) note that increased costs this winter will cause additional pressure on hosts at a time 
when many are considering whether they can continue hosting; and 
 
3)  agree to a Winter top-up of the host thank you payment from the Homes for Ukraine 
(“HfU”) tariff grant as set out in the report 
 
 

1 Background 

1.1 Under the Homes for Ukraine scheme, all lead sponsors are eligible for an optional ‘thank 
you payment’ of £350 per month, for as long as the guests remains in their accommodation, 
for up to 12 months. This payment is tax free and does not affect the sponsor’s entitlement to 
benefits or their council tax status. 

1.2 The thank you payment is Government funded through a specific sponsor thank you grant 
(separate from the £10,500 tariff grant) and is administered on behalf of the County Council 
by the relevant District or Borough Council for the area where the host and guest live. 

1.3 Eligibility for the monthly thank you payment is conditional on: 

• all 5 mandatory checks having been completed 

• guests having been in residence with the host for at least 15 days. 

1.4 In East Sussex well over 80% of eligible hosts have claimed their optional ‘thank you’ 
payment, so far (this number will increase as more people respond to the invitation to claim).   

1.5 The most recent ONS survey released on 10th August indicates that: 

• 25% of hosts want the arrangement to last for 6 months or less. 24% would 
like it to last between 6 -12months. 37% would like it to last for 12 months or 
longer.   

• 70% of respondents suggested that the cost of living is having some impact 
on whether they can provide accommodation  

• 40% noted that increasing the monthly payments of £350 would help them 
continue to provide accommodation 

• A link to the full ONS dataset can be found here Experiences of Homes for 
Ukraine scheme sponsors, UK - Office for National Statistics 

 

1.6 A local survey completed by Rother Voluntary Action supports this projection with a survey in 
Rother asking the question ‘Do you plan to host beyond 6 months’ 

Page 7

Agenda Item 5

https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/populationandmigration/internationalmigration/datasets/experiencesofhomesforukraineschemesponsorsuk
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/populationandmigration/internationalmigration/datasets/experiencesofhomesforukraineschemesponsorsuk


2 

 

• 56.8% said yes 

• 20.5% said no 

• 22.7% said maybe  

Financial pressures featured strongly in feedback given through this telephone survey, 
suggesting many people who were unsure would continue to host if they were able to access 
more financial support.  

1.7 Although there has been some public lobbying of Government to double the host thank you 
payment to £700 to help avoid homelessness, there is no indication that this is imminent or in 
Government plans.   

1.8 A number of other local authorities are acting on this now or have developed proposals to 
top-up host payments.  The majority of local authorities we have contacted are at least 
considering top-ups this winter.   

1.9 In East Sussex, we want to encourage as many hosts as possible to continue their hosting 
relationship for as long as possible, and believe an additional enhanced payment over the 
winter will help, for the following reasons: 

• To help meet the costs of hosting and thereby make hosting affordable for 
hosts for as long as they are otherwise able to continue – many hosts tell us 
£350 will not cover their costs in the winter period 

• To incentivise hosts to continue beyond the 6-month milestone in the majority 
of cases – national and local data tells us that financial pressures are a key 
reason hosts may stop offering their accommodation  

• To incentivise hosts considering offering their homes for rematching, where a 
guest’s previous hosting arrangement has broken down 

• To give more time for Ukrainians to identify suitable longer-term 
accommodation  

• To reduce the risk of homelessness in the short and longer term 

• To reduce the short-term demand for affordable accommodation and spread 
that demand over a longer period  

1.10 To date the following is already in place in East Sussex:  

• Each host already receives an initial payment of £500 rather than £350.  This 
is to thank them for agreeing to support the programme in East Sussex, and 
to assist with any additional costs they may incur in helping their guests to 
settle in, where there can be significant additional upfront costs to hosts.  This 
is already being implemented, the cost of this has been accounted for and is 
projected to be £100,000. 

• Hosts accommodating families of 5 or more will receive £500 (around 25 
hosts support families of 5 – 9 guests).  This is to acknowledge the significant 
additional costs of hosting larger families, and to prioritise avoiding 
homelessness for large families who will be particularly hard to rehouse.  This 
was agreed by ASC&H DMT on 29th July 2022 and is already being 
implemented. The cost of this has already been accounted for and is 
projected to be £30,000. 

• We have built in a proposal for one-off incentive payments to hosts who are 
willing to extend their placements beyond the 12-month period set out in the 
original programme, with a further incentive at the 18-month point.  This will 
not be implemented until hosts begin to reach that milestone (mid-March 
2023) and is projected to cost £337,500, and will may not need to be 
implemented if the Government extend the thank you grant beyond the 
current 12-month limit. 

 

Page 8



3 

 

1.11 However, the existing proposals do not support the majority of hosts with the rapidly rising 
cost of living, particularly over winter 2022/23 and as most hosts reach the end of their 6 
months agreed hosting period. 

1.12 We have therefore considered the options available and models of other local authorities and 
believe that the best way to achieve the above objectives is through a specific winter top-up 
that is easy to administrate and provides a clear financial support arrangement to all hosts 
through the winter period, without the need for a further administrative burden or for eligibility 
criteria to be applied to hosts. 

1.13 We are expecting the pressures on hosting arrangements to increase in the coming months 
as people contend with a number of additional factors:   

• the rising cost of living,  

• living together with less options to spend time outside,  

• increased need to heat and light their homes,  

• planning ahead for family commitments through the Christmas period, and  

• ongoing uncertainty about the war in Ukraine. 

1.14 We therefore propose increasing the monthly payment for all hosts by £150 per host per 
month, for 6 months from the October to March 2023, at a cost of £900 per host family. 

1.15 The maximum projected cost of this proposal is £495,000, which allows for 550 hosts to be 
claiming the winter top-up for a full 6 months.  Currently, 497 hosts are claiming their thank-
you payment and 22 more hosts are eligible.  With the overall number of hosts relatively 
stable as some guests move on, offsetting the now relatively low numbers arriving, and not 
all eligible hosts claiming for the full six months, it is very unlikely that this maximum will be 
reached.     

1.16 For hosts with fewer than 5 guests, the thank you payment will rise from £350 to £500 per 
month. For hosts who are hosting families of 5 or more (currently 25 hosts) this means their 
monthly thank you payments will be £650 per month from October to March, which 
recognises their particular situation.    

1.17 This Winter top-up payment would be paid from the £10,500 tariff grant, which can be used 
flexibly.  The funds are available and a HFU finance update is included in Appendix 1. 

1.18 This top-up payment can be administrated easily through existing processes.  District & 
Borough Councils process payments based on lists of eligible hosts given to them by ESCC.  
Every host claiming their thank you payment completes a declaration that they will advise 
their District & Borough Council if their guests leave and District & Borough Councils have 
existing procedures in place to clawback any funds paid out in excess of what is due.  
Expenditure is recharged to the ASC&H finance team who can therefore monitor expenditure 
against the agreed budget for host payments. 

2 Supporting information 

2.1 Hosting under HfU sponsorship is designed to last for 6 to 12 months, whilst the visa allows 
Ukrainians to remain in the UK for up to 3 years.  This means that between summer 2022 
and the end of 2023 it is likely that most Ukrainian families will be leaving their initial 
sponsorship arrangement in East Sussex and seeking to secure alternative accommodation 
in one of four possible ways: 

1 Leaving the UK (or leaving East Sussex)  

2 Extending sponsorship arrangements, if this an option, including rematching 
to another host   

3 Moving to independent accommodation (most likely private rented)  

4 Homelessness 

2.2 The HfU programme is actively seeking to support positive accommodation outcomes in East 
Sussex by working closely with partners on a range of measures to support independence, 
and to facilitate options 2 or 3 above, through a number of means:  

Page 9



4 

 

• Information, advice, and signposting to services that support economic 
independence and move on, including an employment support offer which is 
currently being launched    

• Support to sustain sponsor arrangements, or to re-match, through partnership 
working between local authorities, the VCSE and BHT Sussex.   

• Commissioning services that can support wellbeing and community 
integration 

• A financial assistance programme to support planned move-on into the private 
rented sector, which we aim to launch from November 2022 

2.3 Due to the fundamental lack of supply of affordable accommodation and pre-existing housing 
pressures there is an ongoing risk of significant numbers of Ukrainians becoming homeless.  
This is particularly acute where there are high concentrations of Ukrainian families in rural 
parts of the county, who may have even more limited affordable housing options.  

2.4 Although a number of measures are in place or being planned to reduce the risk of 
homelessness, it is unlikely that any set of measures will fully mitigate this risk, given the 
limited options for move on and restricted capacity for both private rented accommodation 
and for re-matching.  Currently the HfU partnership are working on 43 cases of Ukrainian 
families in need of move on support, rematching or at risk of homelessness in the coming 
weeks.  In addition, there are 17 closed cases - of those the outcomes at the time the cases 
were closed to HfU were: 

• 6 families in temporary accommodation 

• 1 family left the UK 

• 4 families were sustained with their original host 

• 2 families were re-matched 

• 3 families had accessed the private rented sector 

• 1 family was staying with friends  

These figures only include those where hosts or guests have advised the HfU team of their 
need for support with future accommodation – most hosts and guests have not advised us of 
their intentions, and we expect many to do so in the coming weeks.   

2.5 A risk of high numbers of homelessness presentations is particularly acute in the autumn and 
winter of 2022/23, as from October 2022 most hosts will start to reach the minimum 6-month 
period for hosting.  From October to December 2022, approximately 445 hosts who 
accommodate 1000 Ukrainian guests will reach the 6-month mark.   

2.6  The Ukrainian families or groups being hosted include significant numbers of children and 
young people.  Over half of hosts are giving a home to a family or group of Ukrainians that 
include children in their household. 

2.7 The government is providing funding at a rate of £10,500 per person to councils to enable 
them to provide support to families to rebuild their lives and fully integrate into communities; 
securing stable and affordable accommodation is an essential part of this, of which 
sustaining host placements is one option. 

3  Conclusion and recommendations  

3.1 The HfU programme has now been in place for 7 months and sponsors are starting to reach 
the 6-month milestone at an increasing rate.  Government has not committed to increase 
host thank you payments, despite strong evidence that this would enable a significant 
number of hosts to continue hosting and reduce the risk of homelessness.  In this context 
some local authorities are using their HfU grant to arrange a local top-up. 

3.2 National and local insight and feedback confirms that many host families are under financial 
pressure and that this is a key reason a significant proportion of hosts are considering ending 
their hosting arrangements.  With financial pressures increasing as we head into Winter, 
topping up host payments will give host additional financial security to enable and incentivise 
them to continue hosting.   

Page 10



5 

 

 

.   

 

CHIEF OFFICER NAME: Mark Stainton 

Chief Officer Role:  Director of Adult Social Care & Health  

Contact Officer:   Mark Hendriks 

Tel. No:    07701 394501 

Email:     mark.hendriks@eastsussex.gov.uk  

 

 

Page 11

mailto:mark.hendriks@eastsussex.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1 
 

Homes for Ukraine Finance Update - 
13/10/2022 

YTD Est. Total 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 

        

Income        9,302      7,434       16,736  

        

Guest Payments          276          80           356  

Grants to Ds & Bs            106        428           535  

Staffing (including assessments) and Agency 
costs 

           405         329          734  

Contracts & Services (including home 
checks, employment support and young 
people's activity) 

           735         595        1,330  

Voluntary Organisations            630             -            630  

Move on Support                -       1,380        1,380  

Employment Support                -           492            492  

Homelessness              20  980   1,000  

        

Total Estimated Expenditure (13/10/22)         2,172      4,285        6,457  

        

Estimated balance to provide further support         7,130      3,149       10,279  

 

Page 13

Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Decisions made by the Lead Member on 28 September 2022
	4 Future Technology Enabled Care Service Provision
	5 Homes for Ukraine host winter top-up payments
	Item 5 - Appendix 1


